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a currently valid OMB number. res ways to broaden and enhance the product line. The Company is continually expanding
the AEM instrument product line to satisfy the evolving needs of surgeons. For AEM technology to fully become a
standard of care, the Company must satisfy the surgeons' preferred instrument shapes, sizes, styles and functionality
with integrated AEM instruments. This commitment includes expanding the styles of electrosurgical instruments
available for MIS applications so that the conversion to AEM technology is transparent to the surgeon and would not
require significant change in their current surgical techniques. Current research and development efforts are focused
primarily on line-extension projects to further expand the AEM Laparoscopic Instrument product offering and thereby

increase the surgeons' choices and options in laparoscopic surgery. The Company's research and development
expenses were $502,939 in fiscal year 2003, $445,843 in fiscal year 2002 and $458,091 in fiscal year 2001. The

Company expenses research and development costs for products and processes as incurred. Costs that are included in
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research and development expenses include salaries, contractor fees, materials, facility costs and administrative
expenses.
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Manufacturing, Regulatory Affairs and Quality Assurance

The Company engages in various manufacturing and assembly activities at its leased facility in Boulder, Colorado. These operations
include manufacturing and assembly of the AEM Laparoscopic Instrument system as well as fabrication, assembly and test operations for
instruments and accessories. The Company also has relationships with a number of outside suppliers which provide primary sub-assemblies in
addition to various electronic and sheet metal components, as well as machined and molded parts used in the Company's products.

The Company believes that the use of both internal and external manufacturing capabilities allows for increased flexibility in meeting its
customer delivery requirements, and significantly reduces the need for investment in specialized capital equipment. The Company has developed
multiple sources of supply where possible. The relationship between the Company and its suppliers is generally limited to individual purchase
order agreements supplemented, as appropriate, by contractual relationships to help ensure the availability and low cost of certain products. All
components, materials and subassemblies used in the Company's products, whether produced in-house or obtained from others, are inspected to
ensure compliance with Company specifications. Company personnel subject all finished products to quality assurance and performance testing
procedures. As discussed in the section on Government Regulation, the Company is subject to the rules and regulations of the United States
Food and Drug Administration ("FDA").

The Company's leased facility of 11,455 square feet contains approximately 6,500 square feet of manufacturing, regulatory affairs and
quality assurance space. The facility is designed to comply with the Quality System Regulation ("QSR") as specified in published FDA
regulations. As noted below (Government Regulation), in the latest inspection by the FDA (November 1998), the Company's facility has been
found to be "...in substantial compliance with the Quality System Regulation." The Company achieved CE marking in August 2000, which
required prior certification of the Company's quality system and product documentation. Maintenance of the CE marking status requires annual
audits of the quality system and technical documentation by the Company's European Notified Body, UL International (UK) Ltd. The most
recent audit was successfully completed in May 2003.

Patents, Patent Applications and Proprietary Rights

Encision has invested heavily in an effort to protect its valuable technology and, as a result of this effort, the Company has been issued
eight relevant patents that together form a significant intellectual property position. The Company was issued a United States patent having 42
claims on May 17, 1994. This patent relates to the basic shielding and monitoring technologies that the Company incorporates in its AEM
products. Three additional United States Patents were issued to the Company in 1997, 1998 and 2003, relating to specific implementations of
shielding and monitoring in instruments. Foreign patents relating to the core AEM shielding and monitoring technologies have been issued in
Europe, Japan, Canada and Australia. There are between eight and twelve years remaining on the Company's AEM patents.

The Company's technical progress depends to a significant degree on its ability to maintain patent protection for products and processes, to
preserve its trade secrets and to operate without infringing the proprietary rights of third parties. The Company's policy is to attempt to protect its
technology by, among other things, filing patent applications for technology that it considers important to the development of its business. The
validity and breadth of claims covered in medical technology patents involve complex legal and factual questions and, therefore, may be highly
uncertain. Even with the patents held by the Company, others might copy the Company's technology or otherwise be able to incorporate the
technology in their products.

The Company requires its employees to execute non-disclosure agreements upon commencement of employment. These agreements
generally provide that all confidential information developed or
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made known to the individual by the Company during the course of the individual's employment is the Company's property and is to be kept
confidential and not disclosed to third parties.

Competition

Explanation of Responses: 3
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The electrosurgical device market is intensely competitive and tends to be dominated by a relatively small group of large and well-financed
companies. The Company competes directly for customers with those companies that currently make conventional electrosurgical instruments.
Larger competitors include U.S. Surgical Corporation (a division of TYCO International) and Ethicon Endo-Surgery (a division of Johnson &
Johnson). While the Company knows of no competitor (including those referenced above) that can provide a continuous solution to stray
electrosurgical burns, the manufacturers of conventional (non-monitored, non-shielded) instruments will resist any loss of market share resulting
from the presence of the Company's products in the marketplace.

The Company also believes that manufacturers of products based upon alternative technology to monopolar electrosurgery are competitors
of the Company. These alternative technologies include bipolar electrosurgery, laser surgery and the harmonic scalpel. Leading manufacturers
include Gyrus (bipolar electrosurgery), Lumenis (laser surgery) and Ethicon Endo-Surgery (harmonic scalpel). The Company believes that
monopolar electrosurgery offers substantial competitive and functional advantages over these alternative "energy" technologies and will remain
the primary tool for the surgeon, as it has been for decades. However, the risk exists that these alternative technologies may gain greater market
share and new competitive techniques may be developed and introduced.

As mentioned in the Sales and Marketing discussion, the competitive issues involved in selling the Company's AEM product line do not
primarily revolve around a comparison of cost or features, but rather involve generating an awareness of the inherent hazards of electrosurgery
and the potential for injury to the patient. This involves selling concepts, rather than just a product, which results in a longer sales cycle and
generally higher sales costs. Recent endorsements of active electrode monitoring technology have greatly enhanced the credibility of AEM
Laparoscopic Instruments. However, the Company's efforts to increase market awareness of this technology may not be successful and the
Company's competitors may develop alternative strategies and/or products to counter the Company's marketing efforts.

Many of the Company's competitors and potential competitors have widely used products and significantly greater financial, technical,
product development, marketing and other resources. The Company utilizes a network of independent distributor representatives. In some cases
the Company's options for independent distribution have conflicting and competing product interests which compromise the Company's ability
to make market advances in certain areas. The Company may not be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors and
competitive pressures faced by the Company may have a material adverse impact on its business, operating results and financial condition.

Government Regulation

Government regulation in the United States and other countries is a significant factor in the development and marketing of the Company's
products and in the Company's ongoing manufacturing, research and development activities. The FDA regulates the Company and its products
under a number of statutes, including the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetics Act (the "FDC Act"). Under the FDC Act, medical devices are
classified as Class I, II or III on the basis of the controls deemed necessary to reasonably ensure their safety and effectiveness. Class I devices
are subject to the least extensive controls, as their safety and effectiveness can be reasonably assured through general controls (e.g., labeling,
pre-market notification and adherence to QSR). For Class II devices, safety and effectiveness can be assured through the use of special controls
(e.g., performance standards, post-market

surveillance, patient registries and FDA guidelines). Class III devices (i.e., life-sustaining or life-supporting implantable devices, or new devices
which have been found not to be substantially equivalent to legally marketed devices) require the highest level of control, generally requiring
pre-market approval by the FDA to ensure their safety and effectiveness.

If a manufacturer or distributor of medical devices can establish that a proposed device is "substantially equivalent" to a legally marketed
Class I or Class II medical device or to a Class III medical device for which the FDA has not required a Pre-Market Approval application, the
manufacturer or distributor may seek FDA marketing clearance for the device by filing a 510(k) pre-market notification. Following submission
of the 510(k) notification, the manufacturer or distributor may not place the device into commercial distribution in the United States until an
order has been issued by the FDA. The FDA's target for issuing such orders is within 90 days of submission, but the process can take
significantly longer. The order may declare the FDA's determination that the device is "substantially equivalent” to another legally marketed
device and allow the proposed device to be marketed in the United States. The FDA may, however, determine that the proposed device is not
substantially equivalent or may require further information, such as additional test data, before making a determination regarding substantial
equivalence. Any adverse determination or request for additional information could delay market introduction and have a material adverse effect
on the Company's continued operations. The Company has received 510(k) notification for its AEM monitors and the AEM laparoscopic
instruments, all of which are designated as Class II medical devices.

Labeling and promotional activities are subject to scrutiny by the FDA and, in certain instances, by the Federal Trade Commission. The
FDA also imposes post-marketing controls on the Company and its products, and registration, listing, medical device reporting, post-market

Explanation of Responses: 4
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surveillance, device tracking and other requirements on medical devices. Failure to meet these pervasive FDA requirements or adverse FDA
determinations regarding the Company's clinical and preclinical trials could subject the Company and/or its employees to injunction,
prosecution, civil fines, seizure or recall of products, prohibition of sales or suspension or withdrawal of any previously granted approvals,
which could lead to a material adverse impact on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

The FDA regulates the Company's quality control and manufacturing procedures by requiring the Company and its contract manufacturers
to demonstrate compliance with the QSR as specified in published FDA regulations. The FDA requires manufacturers to register with the FDA,
which subjects them to periodic FDA inspections of manufacturing facilities. If violations of applicable regulations are noted during FDA
inspections of the Company's manufacturing facilities or the facilities of its contract manufacturers, the continued marketing of the Company's
products may be adversely affected. Such regulations are subject to change and depend heavily on administrative interpretations. In
November 1998, the FDA conducted a QSR Inspection of the Company's facilities, with no regulatory follow-up indicated. The Company
believes it has the internal resources and processes in place to be reasonably assured that it is in compliance with all applicable United States
regulations regarding the manufacture and sale of medical devices. However, if the Company were found not to be in compliance with the QSR,
such findings could result in a material adverse impact on the Company's financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Sales of medical devices outside of the United States are subject to United States export requirements and foreign regulatory requirements.
Legal restrictions on the sale of imported medical devices vary from country to country. The time required to obtain approval by a foreign
country may be longer or shorter than that required for FDA approval and the requirements may differ. The Company has obtained a Certificate
of Export from the United States Department of Health and Human Services that states that the Company has been found to be "...in substantial
compliance with Current Good Manufacturing Practices..." based on the most recent inspection. However a specific foreign country in which the
Company wishes to sell its products may not accept or continue to accept the Export Certificate. Entry into the European Economic Area market
also requires prior certification
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of the Company's quality system and product documentation. The Company achieved CE marking in August 2000 to allow a launch into the
European marketplace. Maintenance of the CE marking status requires annual audits of the quality system and technical documentation by the
Company's European Notified Body, UL International (UK) Ltd. The most recent audit was successfully completed in May 2003.

Environmental Laws and Regulations

From time to time the Company receives materials returned from customers, sales representatives and other sources which are potentially
biologically hazardous. These materials are segregated and handled in accordance with specific procedures that minimize the potential exposure
for employees. Such materials are disposed of in accordance with specific procedures. The costs of compliance with these procedures are not
significant. The Company's operations, in general, do not involve the use of environmentally sensitive materials.

Insurance

The Company is covered under comprehensive general liability insurance policies, which have per occurrence and aggregate limits of
$1 million and $2 million, respectively, and a $5 million umbrella policy. The Company maintains customary property and casualty, workers'
compensation, employer liability and other commercial insurance policies.

Employees

As of March 31, 2003, the Company employed 28 full-time individuals, 9 of whom are engaged directly in research, development and
regulatory activities, 6 in manufacturing/operations, 9 in marketing and sales and 4 in administrative positions. None of the Company's
employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement, and the Company considers its relations with its employees to be good.

Properties

The Company leases 11,455 square feet of office and manufacturing space at 4828 Sterling Drive, Boulder, Colorado 80301. The lease
expires on October 31, 2004.

Legal Proceedings

The Company may become involved in litigation in the future in the normal course of business.

Explanation of Responses: 5



Edgar Filing: CHAZEN STEPHEN | - Form 4

The Company has notified Surgical Principals, Inc., one of its stocking distributors, that it is in breach of its Distributor Agreement with the
Company in several respects, and has removed a portion of Surgical Principals' territory from the Agreement. The Company gave Surgical
Principals a Notice to Cure the remaining breaches of the Agreement and Surgical Principals failed to cure, asserting that it believes that the
Company's interpretations of the Agreement are incorrect. Pursuant to the Agreement, the dispute has been submitted to binding arbitration in
Boulder, Colorado. No hearing date has been scheduled. If the Company prevails in the arbitration, the Company would be entitled to terminate
the entire Agreement, and if Surgical Principals prevails, it would be entitled to damages for the Company's removal of a portion of its
distribution territory. If the dispute is not resolved in a timely manner or is resolved in a manner adverse to the Company, it will likely affect
sales activity in the distributor's territory. While the Company believes the existing on-going revenues from the installed base of customers will
not be affected, potential sales to new hospitals in Surgical Principals' territory could be hindered. Surgical Principals' purchases represented
approximately 10% of the Company's revenue in FY2003 and 14% of the Company's revenue in FY 2002.
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Company's Common Stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Over The Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol ECSN. The quotations below
reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions. The
following table sets forth for the periods indicated, the high and low closing sale prices for the Common Stock:

High Low

Fiscal Year ended March 31, 2002

First Quarter through June 30, 2001 $ 205 $ 072

Second Quarter through September 30, 2001 3.25 2.00

Third Quarter through December 31, 2001 2.50 1.65

Fourth Quarter through March 31, 2002 5.00 2.15
Fiscal Year ended March 31, 2003

First Quarter through June 30, 2002 4.51 2.50

Second Quarter through September 30, 2002 3.40 2.15

Third Quarter through December 31, 2002 3.10 2.30

Fourth Quarter through March 31, 2003 3.23 2.51
Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2004

First Quarter through June 30, 2003 3.35 1.88

Second Quarter (through October 14, 2003) 4.20 3.15

As of October 13, 2003, there were approximately 127 holders of record of the Common Stock. This number does not reflect stockholders
who beneficially own Common Stock held in nominee or street name, which as of May 31, 2003, approximated 742 stockholders.

Dividend Policy

The Company has not paid cash dividends in the past and does not intend to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The Company
presently intends to retain any cash generated from operations in the future for use in its business.

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of March 31, 2003

Number of securities

Number of securities to Weighted-average remaining available for future

be issued upon exercise exercise price of issuance under equity
Plan Category of outstanding options outstanding options compensation plans
Equity compensation 846,156 $ 1.53 102,525

plans approved by

Explanation of Responses: 6
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Number of securities

Number of securities to Weighted-average remaining available for future
be issued upon exercise exercise price of issuance under equity
Plan Category of outstanding options outstanding options compensation plans
security holders
Equity compensation
plans not approved by
security holders
Total 846,156 $ 1.53 102,525
A-12

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

General

Encision Inc. has developed and launched innovative technology that is emerging as a standard of care in minimally invasive surgery. The
Company believes its patented AEM® Surgical Instruments are changing the marketplace for electrosurgical devices and laparoscopic
instruments by providing a solution to a well-documented patient safety risk in laparoscopic surgery.

Encision was founded to address market opportunities created by the increase in minimally invasive surgery ("MIS") and the surgeons'
preference for using electrosurgery devices in these procedures. The product opportunity was created by surgeons' continued widespread demand
for using monopolar electrosurgery instruments which, when used in laparoscopic surgery, are susceptible to causing inadvertent collateral tissue
damage outside the surgeon's field of view. The risk of unintended electrosurgical burn injury to the patient in laparoscopic surgery has been
well documented. This risk poses a significant threat to patient safety and creates liability exposure for surgeons and hospitals that do not
adequately address the issue.

Encision's patented AEM technology provides surgeons with the desired tissue effects, while preventing stray electrosurgical energy that
can cause unintended and unseen tissue injury. AEM Laparoscopic Instruments are equivalent to conventional instruments in size, shape,
ergonomics and functionality but they incorporate "active electrode monitoring" technology to dynamically and continuously monitor the flow
of electrosurgical current, thereby helping to prevent patient injury. With Encision's "shielded and monitored" instruments, surgeons are able to
perform electrosurgical procedures more safely and efficaciously than is possible using conventional instruments. In addition, the AEM
instruments are cost competitive with conventional "non-shielded, non-monitored" instruments. The result is advanced patient safety at
comparable cost and with no change in surgeon technique.

AEM technology has been recommended and endorsed by sources from all groups involved in minimally invasive surgery. Surgeons,
nurses, biomedical engineers, the medicolegal community, malpractice insurance carriers and electrosurgical device manufacturers advocate the
use of AEM technology. The breadth of endorsements continues to expand with the recognition of active electrode monitoring technology as an

AORN Recommended Practice by the Association of periOperative Registered Nurses and with insurance and medicolegal endorsements.

The Company has focused its marketing strategies on expanding the market awareness of the AEM technology and its broad independent
endorsements, and has continued efforts to expand the AEM product line. With the broad array of AEM instruments now available from the
Company, the surgeon has a wide choice of instrument options and does not have to change surgical technique. This coincides with the
continued expansion of independent endorsements for AEM technology. New recommendations from the malpractice insurance and medicolegal
communities complement the broad clinical endorsements AEM technology has garnered over the past few years.

Adding further credibility to the benefits of Encision's AEM technology is the Company's recent supplier agreements with Novation and
Premier, two of the largest Group Purchasing Organizations (GPO) in the United States. Together, Novation and Premier represent over 3,000
hospitals and over 50% of all surgery in the U.S. Management believes that the launch of these GPO supplier agreements gives further indication
that AEM technology is gaining broader acceptance in the market. Management believes that having the nation's leading medical purchasing
groups recognize the value of the Company's technology reflects the potential impact that AEM instruments products can have in the market and
in advancing patient safety in surgery nationwide. These agreements do not involve
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purchase commitments, but the Company expects these relationships to expand the market visibility of AEM technology and smooth the
procurement and conversion process for new hospital customers.

When a hospital converts to AEM technology it provides recurring revenue to the Company from sales of replacement instruments. There is
a strong retention rate of customers who have converted to AEM technology. Management believes this indicates strong customer satisfaction
and is further supported by the fact that there is no directly competing technology to supplant AEM products once the hospital has converted.
The replacement market of reusable and disposable AEM products in converted hospitals represents over 65% of Encision's revenue over the
past twelve months and this revenue stream is expected to grow as the base of newly converted hospitals continues to grow.

Until fiscal 2003, the Company has incurred annual losses since its inception and has an accumulated deficit of $15,226,342 at June 30,
2003. Operations have been financed primarily through issuance of equity. The Company's liquidity has stabilized after a history of operating
losses. To further expand it operations, or to support future operating losses, if any, the Company may be required to seek additional capital to
continue operations.

During the three months ended June 30, 2003, the Company used $23,449 in cash from its operations, used $89,215 for investments in
patents and equipment (primarily capital equipment owned by the Company at customer locations). As of June 30, 2003, the Company had
$472,888 in cash and cash equivalents available to fund future operations, a decrease of $112,664 from March 31, 2003. The Company's
working capital is $1,581,280 at June 30, 2003.

Outlook

Installed Base of AEM Monitoring Equipment: The Company believes that the installed base of AEM monitors has the potential for
increasing as the inherent risks associated with monopolar laparoscopic electrosurgery become more widely acknowledged and as the network of
independent sales representatives becomes more adept at selling the AEM products to our customers. The Company expects that the replacement
sales of electrosurgical instruments and accessories will increase as additional hospitals are converted to AEM technology. The Company
believes that the measures taken to improve the quality of sales representatives carrying the AEM product line, along with increased marketing
efforts and the introduction of new products, may provide the basis for increased revenue and continuing profitable operations. However these
measures, or any others that the Company may adopt, may not result in either increased revenue or continuing profitable operations.

Possibility of Continued Operating Losses:  Until fiscal 2003, the Company had incurred losses from operations since inception and has
an accumulated deficit of $15,226,342 as of June 30, 2003. The Company has made significant strides toward improving its operating results
and $442,315 of cash was provided by the Company' operating activities in fiscal 2003. However, due to the ongoing need to develop, optimize
and train the sales distribution network and the need to increase sustained revenues to a level adequate to cover fixed and variable operating
costs, the Company may operate at a net loss from time to time. The Company is evaluating various future funding options. However,
management believes that its current cash on hand and working capital will be sufficient to fund operations through at least March 31, 2004.

Revenue Growth: The Company expects to generate increased revenue in the U.S. from sales to new hospital customers as the network of
independent sales representatives becomes more proficient and expands the number of hospital conversions to AEM Laparoscopic Instruments.
The Company believes that the visibility and credibility of the independent clinical endorsements for the AEM technology will contribute to new
hospital conversions and increased revenues in fiscal 2004. The Company also expects that supplier agreements with Novation and Premier,
which together represent over 3,000 U.S. hospitals, will expose more hospitals to the benefits of AEM technology and may stimulate new
hospital conversions and increased revenues. The Company also expects to accelerate
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market share gains through promotional programs of placing Company-owned AEM monitors at no charge into hospitals that commit to
standardize on AEM instruments.

Gross Profit and Gross Margins: ~ Gross profit and gross margin can be expected to fluctuate from quarter to quarter, as a result of product
sales mix and sales volume. Gross margins on products manufactured or assembled by the Company are expected to improve at higher levels of
production and sales.

Explanation of Responses: 8
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Sales and Marketing Expenses: We continue our efforts to expand domestic and international distribution capability and we believe that
sales and marketing expenses will decrease as a percentage of net revenue with increasing sales volume.

Research and Development Expenses: Research and development expenses are expected to increase modestly to support development of
additions to our AEM product line, further expanding the instrument options for the surgeon. New additions to the AEM product line are
planned for introduction in fiscal year 2004.

Results of Operations
Three months ended June 30, 2003 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2002.

Net revenue. Revenue for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, was $1,701,940, compared to $1,342,392 for the quarter ended June 30, 2002,
an increase of 27%. The increase is attributable to our increasing visibility in the market which has resulted in the conversion of new hospitals
utilizing AEM technology. The increasing number of hospitals using AEM technology is also attributed to improving sales and marketing
efforts, the recent GPO supplier agreements with Novation and Premier, as well as our strategic plan to accelerate market share gains through
promotional programs of placing Company-owned AEM Monitors at no-charge into hospitals that commit to standardize on AEM instruments.
In addition, the Company experienced a consistent level of replacement business from the installed base of users. When a hospital converts to
AEM technology the Company earns revenue from replacement instrument purchases, which only the Company can provide. Ten new hospitals
converted to AEM technology in the three months ended June 30, 2003.

Gross Profit. The gross profit for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 of $969,933 increased by 17% from the quarter ended June 30, 2002
gross profit of $829,332. Gross profit as a percentage of revenue (gross margin) decreased from 62% for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 to 57%
in the quarter ended June 30, 2003. The decrease in gross margin was primarily the result of increased depreciation expense for no-charge AEM
monitors placed in customer facilities, added headcount in operations department, a shift in revenue mix in Q1 (increased sales for a lower
margin product family), and unfavorable foreign exchange rates, which increased the price we paid for certain sub-assembly materials,
compared with one year ago. For the three months ended June 30, 2003, the Company provided $50,211 of Company-owned AEM monitors to
customers at no charge to newly converted hospitals as part of a sales incentive program.

Sales and marketing expenses. Sales and marketing expenses of $518,403 for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 decreased by 8% compared
to $561,040 for the quarter ended June 30, 2002. The decrease was a result of decreased sales commissions. The sales commission programs are
based on revenue goals which include incentives for the sales team to grow revenue via new hospital conversions to the Company's AEM
products. The number of new conversions in the quarter was below plan resulting in sales expenses being under budget.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses of $226,294 for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 decreased by
3% compared to $232,301 for the quarter ended June 30, 2002. The decrease is the result of reduced investor relations costs and in line with the
budget plan.
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Research and development expenses. Research and development expenses of $188,574 for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 increased by
51% compared to $124,778 for the quarter ended June 30, 2002. The increase is a result of added headcount and the costs associated with
initiatives to address design and manufacturing improvements with two product lines.

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2003 compared to the fiscal years ended March 31, 2002, and March 31, 2001.

Net revenue. Revenue for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003 ("FY 03") was $6,812,339, which represents an increase of 40% from the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2002 ("FY 02").

This increase is due to the conversion of over 120 new hospitals to AEM instruments, increasing the installed base of AEM users over 50%.
The increasing exposure and credibility of the benefits of AEM technology, combined with improved sales and marketing efforts, contributed to
a record number of new hospital conversions to AEM Laparoscopic Instruments. In addition, the Company benefited from a strong customer
retention rate and recurring revenue stream from purchases of replacement instruments in existing accounts. In FY 03, the Company retained
over 95% of customers who had converted to AEM technology in FY 02. Management believes that this indicates strong customer satisfaction
and is further supported by the fact that there is no directly competing technology to supplant AEM products once the hospital has converted.
The replacement market of reusable and disposable AEM products in converted hospitals represents over 65% of the Company's revenue in FY
03 and FY 02 and this revenue stream is expected to grow as the base of converted hospitals continues to grow. Market share gains were
stimulated by promotional programs of placing Company-owned AEM Monitors at no charge into hospitals that commit to standardize on AEM
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instruments.

Revenue for FY 02 was $4,863,908, an increase of 61% from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 ("FY 01"). The increase in FY 02
revenue is attributable to the Company continuing to expand its product offering and improve its sales and marketing efforts which resulted in
the conversion of new hospitals utilizing AEM technology.

Gross profit.  Gross profit in FY 03 was $4,040,370, which resulted in a gross margin of 59% of revenue. This was an improvement of
$1,282,304 from FY 02 gross profit, and a two percentage point increase in gross margin. The increase was primarily the result of increased unit
sales, resulting in increased utilization of fixed manufacturing overhead and headcount. Also contributing were manufacturing and purchasing
efficiencies implemented during the year. A predictable product usage rate in existing accounts allows for improvement in manufacturing and
purchasing efficiencies. Small price increases on selected products had a minor effect on the gross margin improvements. For FY 03, the
Company provided $306,318 (cost) of Company-owned AEM Monitors at no charge to newly converted hospitals as part of a sales incentive
program, whereas in previous years the Company had either sold the monitors or given them to the customer at no charge. While the Company
maintains ownership of these units, and bears the risk of their loss, this new program has allowed the Company to more quickly penetrate certain
customer opportunities. These units are depreciated using accelerated methods over their useful lives, and such depreciation is recorded as a cost
of sale.

Gross profit in FY 02 was $2,758,066, which resulted in a gross margin of 57% of revenue. This was an improvement of $1,125,310 from
FY 01 gross profit, and a three percentage point increase in gross margin. The increase was primarily the result of increased unit sales, resulting
in increased utilization of fixed manufacturing overhead and headcount. Also contributing were manufacturing and purchasing efficiencies
implemented during the year. A predictable product usage rate in existing accounts allowed for improvement in manufacturing and purchasing
efficiencies. Small price increases on selected products had a minor effect on the gross margin improvements.

Sales and marketing expenses. Sales and marketing expenses were $2,488,120 in FY 03, an increase of 42% from FY 02. The increase
was primarily a result of an increase in variable sales commissions on higher revenue. The Company achieved a 40% increase in revenue and a
corresponding 42% increase
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in sales and marketing expenses. The Company's marketing efforts continued to focus on educating affected constituencies, which has resulted
in garnering independent endorsements for AEM technology, and promoting these recommendations in the marketplace.

Sales and marketing expenses were $1,752,238 in FY 02, an increase of 17% from FY 01. The increase was a result of an increase of
variable sales commissions on higher revenues. The Company achieved a 61% increase in revenues with only a 17% increase in sales and
marketing expenses.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses were $841,453 in FY 03, an increase of 6% from FY 02. The
increase was a result of salary increases offset by management expense controls.

General and administrative expenses were $790,607 in FY 02, an increase of 3% from FY 01, primarily the result of salary increases offset
by management expense controls.

Research and development. Research and development expenses were $502,939 in FY 03, an increase of 13% from FY 02. The increase
is a result of added headcount and the costs associated with initiatives to address design, manufacturing and cost improvements.

Research and development expenses were $445,843 in FY 02, a decrease of 3% from FY 01. This decrease is due to expense controls and
management's commitment to focus on specific AEM-related projects that could provide increasing revenues.

Net income and loss. Net income in FY 03 of $214,342 represented an increase of $429,919 compared to FY 02 loss of $215,577. This
improvement was due to the Company successfully following its strategic business plan and achieving new business through the conversion of
new hospitals to AEM technology, as well as increased sales of replacement products to existing customers. The Company achieved a significant
increase in revenue and gross margin while maintaining operating expenses at prudent levels. Management believes the execution of its business
plan in FY 03 was successful, resulting in notable improvement in the various operating indicators, e.g. revenue increased 40%, gross profit
increased 46% and gross profit margin improved from 57% to 59%. Operating expenses, calculated as a percentage of revenue, were reduced,
and yet the Company was able to maintain progressive activities in the marketplace. The first-time achievement of net income and positive cash
flow in fiscal year 2003 is a significant milestone for the Company.
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Net loss in FY 02 of $215,577 was a decrease of $774,875 (78%) compared to FY 01 due to the Company successfully following its
strategic business plan and achieving new business through the conversion of additional hospitals to AEM technology, as well as increased sales
to existing customers. The Company achieved a significant increase in revenue and gross margin while maintaining operating expenses at
prudent levels. Management believes implementation of strategic operational changes in FY 02 was successful, resulting in notable
improvement in the various operating indicators, e.g., revenue increased 61%, gross profit increased 69% and gross profit margin improved from
54% to 57%. Operating expenses, calculated as a percentage of revenue, were significantly reduced.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

To date, operating funds have been provided primarily by sales of common stock and warrants to purchase the Company's common stock,
which totaled $17,267,684 through June 30, 2003, and, to a lesser degree, funds provided by sales of the Company's products. The Company's
operations used $23,449 of cash in the three months ended June 30, 2003 on sales of $1,701,940 and generated $62,887 of cash in the three
months ended June 30, 2002 on sales of $1,342,392. In previous years the use of cash in our operations resulted primarily from the funding of
the Company's net losses. These amounts of cash generated from and used in operations are not indicative of the expected cash to be generated
from or used in operations in FY 04. As of June 30, 2003, the Company had $472,888 in cash and cash
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equivalents available to fund future operations. Working capital was $1,581,280 at June 30, 2003 compared to $1,596,831 at March 31, 2003.
Current liabilities were $850,126 at June 30, 2003, compared to $926,781 at March 31, 2003.

During FY 03, we achieved annual net income and positive cash flow for the first time in the history of the Company. We continued our
aggressive marketing and sales plan and these efforts resulted in continued revenue increases. We believe that revenue increases combined with
controlled operating expenses and increased gross profit margins, if achieved, will contribute to ongoing net income and conserve cash
resources.

Capital expenditures in the three months ended June 30, 2003 ($89,215) resulted primarily from the capitalization of AEM monitors placed
in hospitals under various promotional programs. Placing Company-owned AEM monitors into hospitals at no charge to facilitate their use of
AEM instruments is an initiative to accelerate new hospital conversions to AEM instruments. Under these promotional programs the Company
maintains ownership of the AEM monitor and the cost is capitalized and depreciated as cost of sales over the projected five year life of the asset.

Our fiscal year 2004 ("FY 04") operating plan is focused on growing revenue, increasing gross profits and conserving cash. We can not
predict with certainty the expected revenue, gross profit, net income or loss and usage of cash and cash equivalents for FY 04. However, we
believe that our cash resources will be sufficient to fund our operations for at least the next twelve months under our current operating plan. If
we are unable to manage the business operations in line with our budget expectations, it could have a material adverse effect on our business
viability, financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Further, if we are not successful in sustaining profitability and remaining at
least cash flow break-even, additional capital will be required to maintain ongoing operations.

On July 30, 2003, we sold 333,334 shares of our common stock to the selling shareholders, for gross proceeds of $1,000,002. We have
explored and are continuing to explore options to provide additional financing to fund future operations as well as other possible courses of
action. Such actions include, but are not limited to, securing a line of credit, sales of debt or equity securities (which may result in dilution to
existing shareholders), licensing of technology, strategic alliances and other similar actions. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to obtain additional funding through a sale of its common stock or loans from financial institutions or other third parties or through any of
the actions discussed above. If we cannot sustain profitable operations and additional capital is unavailable, its lack of liquidity could have a
material adverse effect on our business viability, financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We believe the unique performance of the AEM technology and its breadth of independent endorsements provides an opportunity for
continued market share growth. We believe that the market awareness of the AEM technology and its endorsements is continually improving
and that this will benefit the sales efforts in FY 04. We believe that the Company enters FY 04 having achieved improvements in sales
infrastructure, product line expansion and the clinical credibility of its technology. Our objectives in FY 04 are to maintain expense controls
while optimizing sales execution in the field, expand market awareness of the AEM technology and maximize the number of additional hospital
conversions to AEM instruments.

Income Taxes

As of March 31, 2003, net operating loss carryforwards totaling approximately $12,300,000 are available to reduce taxable income in the
future. The net operating loss carryforwards expire, if not previously utilized, at various dates beginning in the year 2011. The Company has not
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operating loss carryforwards available to be used in any given year, if certain events occur, including changes in ownership interests. The
Company has established a
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valuation allowance for the entire amount of its deferred tax asset since inception due to its history of losses. During FY 03 the Company
utilized net operating loss carryforwards to entirely offset its tax liability. As a result, no tax provision is reflected in the accompanying
statements of operations. Should the Company achieve sufficient, sustained income in the future, the Company may conclude that some or all of
the valuation allowance should be reversed.

Contractual Obligations

At June 30, 2003, the Company's commitments under these obligations were as follows:

Operating
Leases
Year ended March 31,
2004 $ 83,679
2005 66,955
$ 150,634
.|

Aside from the operating lease commitments, the Company does not have any material contractual commitments requiring settlement in the
future.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon our financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires
us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to bad debts, inventories, sales returns,
warranty, contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We
believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial
statements.

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required
payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required, which would increase our expenses during the periods in which any such allowances were made. The amount
recorded as a provision for bad debt in each period is based upon our assessment of the likelihood that we will be paid on our outstanding
receivables, based on customer-specific as well as general considerations. To the extent that our estimates prove to be too high, and we
ultimately collect a receivable previously determined to be impaired, we may record a reversal of the provision in the period of such
determination.

We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. While we engage in extensive product quality
programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality of its component suppliers, we have experienced some costs
related to warranty. The warranty accrual is based upon historical experience and is adjusted based on current experience. Should actual
warranty experience differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be required.
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We reduce inventory for estimated obsolete or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the
estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than
those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required. Any write-downs of inventory would reduce our reported
net income during the period in which such write-downs were applied. To the extent that our estimates prove to be too high, and we ultimately
utilize or sell inventory previously determined to be impaired, we may record a reversal of the provision in the period of such determination.

We recognize deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the expected future income tax consequences, based on enacted tax laws, of
temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are then reduced, if deemed
necessary, by a valuation allowance for the amount of any tax benefits which, more likely than not based on current circumstances, are not
expected to be realized. Should we achieve sufficient, sustained income in the future, we may conclude that all or some of the valuation
allowance should be reversed

We depreciate our property and equipment primarily on a double-declining basis over the estimated useful life of the asset, generally three
to five years. The Company-owned, consignment AEM Monitors are depreciated on a double-declining basis for a period of 5 years. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset. Maintenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred and major additions, replacements and improvements are capitalized.

We amortize our patent costs over their estimated useful lives, which is typically the remaining statutory life. From time to time, we may be
required to adjust these lives based on advances in technology, competitor actions, and the like. We review the recorded amounts of patents at
each period end to determine if their carrying amount is still recoverable based on our expectations regarding sales of related products. Such an
assessment, in the future, may result in a conclusion that the assets are impaired, with a corresponding charge against earnings.
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PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock as of the date of this prospectus by:

each of our named executive officers and directors;

all executive officers and directors as a group; and

each person we know to own beneficially more than 5% of our outstanding common stock, including the selling
shareholders in this offering.

Shares of common stock that are not outstanding, but that are deemed beneficially owned by virtue of the right of an individual to acquire
the shares of common stock within 60 days under stock option plans or warrants, are treated as outstanding only when determining the amount
and percentage of common stock owned by such individual. Except as noted below the table, each person has sole voting and investment power
with respect to the shares of common stock shown. Unless otherwise shown, the address of each person is 4828 Sterling Drive, Boulder,
Colorado 80301.

Shares Beneficially
Owned Prior to Offering
Shares
Being Percentage
Offeredin  Owned After

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Number Percent Offering Offering?
Executive Officers and Directors
James A. Bowman' 663,143 10.8% 10.8%
Vern D. Kornelson? 1,893,443 32.9% 32.9%
Robert Fries? 5,000 * *
David W. Newton* 321,942 5.6% 5.6%
Roger C. Odell® 70,766 1.2% 1.2%
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Shares Beneficially
Owned Prior to Offering

All executive officers and directors as a group (9 persons)® 3,087,484 49.3% 49.3%

Selling Shareholders
Wasatch Micro Cap Fund 7.5% 200,000 4.0%
Wasatch Micro Cap Value Fund

Wasatch Advisors, Inc.

150 Social Hall Avenue, 4% FI.

Salt Lake City, Utah 84111 ﬁ&%gg 23% 133,334 *

Other 5% Beneficial Owners
CMED Partners LLLP

4605 Denice Drive

Englewood, Colorado 80111 1,830,222 31.8% 31.8%
Timothy J. Wynne

c/o Surgical Principals, Inc.

2105 Meridian Street East

Edgewood, Washington 98371 380,700 6.6% 6.6%

Indicates less than 1%.

)]

Includes 352,143 shares issuable pursuant to currently exercisable options.
@)

Includes 63,221 shares owned directly, and 1,830,222 shares owned by CMED Partners LLLP, of which Mr. Kornelsen is the General

Partner.
3)

Includes 5,000 shares issuable pursuant to currently exercisable options.
C))

Includes 15,993 shares issuable pursuant to currently exercisable options.
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)

Includes 2,200 shares issuable pursuant to currently exercisable options.
(6)

Includes 500,516 shares issuable pursuant to currently exercisable options.
@)

Assumes the sale by the selling shareholders of all shares included in this prospectus. We have no control over when, if ever, the
selling shareholders will sell any such shares.

Certain Transactions

On July 30, 2003 we issued a total of 333,334 shares of our common stock to the Wasatch Micro Cap Fund and the Wasatch Micro Cap
Value Fund, for gross proceeds of $1,000,002. Funds managed by Wasatch Advisors, Inc. held shares of our common stock, constituting less
than 5% of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock, prior to this transaction.

We sell our products in certain geographic regions through Surgical Principals, Inc., a stocking distributor that is principally owned and
controlled by Timothy Wynne, who owns 7% of our issued and outstanding common stock. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, business
from this distributor accounted for approximately 10% of our revenue.
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MANAGEMENT
Directors

The following table sets forth the members of our Board of Directors, their ages as of March 31, 2003, and positions and offices they hold
with us in addition to being directors:

Name Age Position

Vern D. Kornelsen(!? 70  Director

Robert H. Fries" 54  Director & Contract CFO

James A. Bowman 46 Director President & CEO

David W. Newton 56 Director Co-Founder, VP Technology
Roger C. Odell 52 Director Co-Founder, Business Development

(D
Member of the Audit Committee

€]

Member of the Compensation Committee

All directors hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until their successors have been duly elected and qualified. Our
executive officers are appointed by, and serve at the discretion of, the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has an Audit Committee and a
Compensation Committee. There is no family relationship between any director and any of our other directors or officers.

Vern D. Kornelsen, one of our co-founders, served on our Board of Directors and as the Chief Financial Officer from 1991 through
February of 1997. He was re-elected to the Board in April 1998. Mr. Kornelsen is the General Partner of CMED Partners LLLP, one of our
major shareholders. Mr. Kornelsen is a retired CPA, having practiced as a certified public accountant in the state of Colorado for many years.
For the past 5 years, he has been active in managing 2 investment partnerships, of which he is the general partner, as well as serving as an officer
and director of several private companies of which he is the controlling stockholder. Mr. Kornelsen holds a bachelor's degree in business from
the University of Kansas.

Robert H. Fries was appointed to our Board of Directors in June 2003. He is founder and President of FinanceVision Services, Inc. and has
served as a finance executive with a broad range of large and small companies. Since March 2000, he has provided us with financial services as
our contract Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Fries' credentials include a Masters in Business Administration from St. John's University, New York,
a CPA and a Juris Doctorate degree.

James A. Bowman has been our President & Chief Executive Officer since February 2000 and a Director since August 2000. Mr. Bowman
has previously held various director and management positions within the medical & surgical device industry, including C. R. BARD, Ohmeda,
Surgical Laser Technologies and Hamilton Company. Mr. Bowman also founded MedPlanet Inc. Mr. Bowman holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Biomedical Engineering from Marquette University.

David W. Newton, one of our co-founders, has been Vice President and a Director since our inception in 1991. From 1989 until 1991,
Mr. Newton was President of Newton Associates, Inc., a contract engineering firm. From 1985 to 1989, Mr. Newton was President of
Tienet, Inc., a developer of integrated computer systems. Mr. Newton has an additional 14 years of experience as an electrical engineer
designing electrosurgical generators and related accessories. Mr. Newton holds nine patents in the field of medical electronic equipment and
holds a bachelor's degree in electrical engineering from the University of Colorado.
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Roger C. Odell, one of our co-founders, has been a Director since our inception. From 1976 until 1991, Mr. Odell was employed at
Valleylab in a variety of increasingly responsible engineering capacities, primarily involving electrosurgical products. Mr. Odell holds an
associate of applied science degree in electrical engineering from Alfred State University.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, there were twelve meetings of the Board of Directors. Except for Mr. Fries, all directors
attended all of the meetings of the Board and committees of the Board on which they were members during fiscal year 2003. There was one
meeting of the Audit Committee and one meeting of the Compensation Committee, both attended by all Directors who were members of the
committees at the time of the meetings.

Compensation of Directors

Outside Directors are reimbursed $1,000 for each Board meeting attended and for their out-of-pocket expenses for attending Board
meetings.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth our executive officers, their ages as of March 31, 2003, and their positions:

Name Age Position

James A. Bowman 46  President & CEO

David W. Newton 56 VP Technology

Diane Keyser 37 VP Engineering

Judith King 53 VP Regulatory Affairs & Quality Assurance
Marcia McHaffie 57 Controller, Corporate Secretary

Richard Smoot 43 VP Operations

Diane Keyser has been our VP of Engineering since April 2003 and a Senior Engineer since November 2001. Ms. Keyser was employed at
Origin Medsystems, Eli Lilly and Guidant in various engineering and engineering management positions since 1989, designing and developing
minimally invasive surgical instruments. Ms. Keyser holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering from MIT and a Master's of
Science in Engineering from Stanford and holds three patents concerning medical devices.

Judith King, VP RA/QA, joined Encision to be responsible for Regulatory Affairs and Quality Assurance activities in October 1999. She is
a certified Regulatory Affairs Professional and Biomedical Quality Auditor. She came to the company with 11 years of experience in regulatory
affairs and engineering lab management for medical device companies, and has a Bachelor of Arts from Michigan State University.

Marcia McHaffie has been our Controller since 1993 and Corporate Secretary since 2000. Ms. McHaffie was employed with Beacon
Laboratories and Collins Machine & Mfg. Co. as controller and accounting manager for 7 years prior to joining Encision. Ms. McHaffie has
over 25 years of accounting experience.

Richard Smoot, Jr. is VP- Operations and has been with Encision since 1995. Mr. Smoot was employed with Beacon Laboratories and
Valleylab for 12 years prior to joining Encision, primarily responsible for Operations, Purchasing and Quality Departments. He has over
20 years experience in the electrosurgical industry.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary Compensation

The following table sets forth certain information regarding compensation earned or awarded to our President and Chief Executive Officer
(the "Named Executive Officer") during our last three fiscal years ended March 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003. No other executive officer received
total salary and bonus compensation in excess of $100,000 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003.

Summary Compensation Table
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Long Term
Annual Compensation Compensation Awards

Other Annual Securities Underlying

Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($§) Bonus ($) Compensation ($) Options/# of Shares
James A. Bowman, 2003 125,000 0 0 0
Director, President & CEO 2002 95,000 0 0 0

2001 85,000 17,500 0 300,000
Stock Options

On February 14, 1991, the Board of Directors and our shareholders adopted a stock option plan (the "1991 Plan") providing for grants of
stock options, stock appreciation rights and/or supplemental bonuses to employees and directors who are also employees. The 1991 Plan
permitted the granting of incentive stock options meeting the requirements of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
and also nonqualified stock options, which do not meet the requirements of Section 422. As of March 31, 2003, options to purchase an aggregate
of 275,762 shares of our common stock (net of options canceled) had been granted pursuant to the 1991 Plan and 180,562 options had been
exercised. The 1991 Plan expired on February 14, 2002 and no further stock options could be granted after that date.

On August 15, 1997, our shareholders approved the adoption of the 1997 Stock Option Plan (the "1997 Plan") providing for grants of stock
options and/or supplemental bonuses to our employees and directors. The Plan permits the granting of incentive stock options meeting the
requirements of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and also nonqualified stock options which do not meet the
requirements of Section 422. As approved by the shareholders, we had reserved 800,000 shares of our common stock for issuance upon exercise
of options granted under the 1997 Plan.

On July 24, 2002, our shareholders approved an amendment by the Board of Directors to increase the number of common shares reserved
for issuance under the 1997 Plan by 100,000 shares, to a total of 900,000 from 800,000 shares of common stock subject to adjustment for
dividend, stock split or other relevant changes in our capitalization. As of March 31, 2003, options to purchase an aggregate of 797,475 shares of
common stock (net of options canceled) had been granted pursuant to the 1997 Plan and 46,519 options had been exercised.

As of March 31, 2003, the market value of all shares of common stock subject to outstanding options was $2,242,313 (based upon the
closing price as reported on the Nasdaq Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board on such date). The Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors administers the Stock Option Plan.
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding the number and value of exercisable and unexercisable options to purchase
shares of Common Stock held as of the end of our 2003 fiscal year by the Named Executive Officer:

AGGREGATED 2003
FISCAL YEAR END OPTION VALUES

Number of Shares Underlying Value of Unexercised
Shares Unexercised Options at in-the-Money Options at
Acquired March 31, 2003 (#) March 31, 2003 ($)
on Value

Exercise Realized
Name #) $) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
James A. Bowman N/A N/A 345,333 14,667 521,807 14,667
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The following audited financial statements are included in this prospectus:

Page
Independent Auditors' Report F-1
Report of Independent Public Accountants F-2
Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2003 and 2002 F-3
Statements of Operations for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 F-4
Statements of Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the fiscal years
ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 F-5
Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 F-6
Notes to Financial Statements F-7

The following unaudited Condensed Interim Financial Statements are included following the audited financial statements and
accompanying notes:

Page
Condensed Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2003 and March 31, 2003 F-17
Condensed Statements of Operations for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 F-18
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 F-19
Notes to Condensed Interim Financial Statements F-20

Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Encision Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Encision Inc. (a Colorado corporation) as of March 31, 2003, and the related
statements of operations, shareholders' equity and comprehensive income (loss) and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. The financial statements of Encision Inc. as of March 31, 2002, and for each of the two years in the period then ended were audited
by other auditors who have ceased operations. Those auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements in their report
dated May 3, 2002.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the fiscal 2003 financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Encision Inc. as of March 31, 2003, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Boulder, Colorado
May 2, 2003
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Report of Independent Public Accountants
To Encision Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of ENCISION INC. (a Colorado corporation) as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, and the
related statements of operations, shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended March 31, 2002. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Encision Inc. as of
March 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended March 31,
2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Denver, Colorado,
May 3, 2002.

The report of Arthur Andersen LLP (Andersen) is a copy of a report previously issued by Andersen on May 3, 2002. We have not been able
to obtain a re-issued report from Andersen, as Andersen has ceased operations. As a result, Andersen has not consented to the inclusion of its
report in this Registration Statement on Form SB-2. The report of Andersen refers to a balance sheet as of March 31, 2001 and statements of
operations, shareholders' equity and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2000 not included herein. Because Andersen has not consented to
the inclusion of its report in this Registration Statement on Form SB-2, it may be more difficult for you to seek remedies against Andersen and
your ability to seek relief against Andersen may be impaired.

A-F-2
ENCISION INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
March 31,
2003 2002
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 585,552 $ 500,988
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of

$25,000 (2003) and $16,000 (2002) 959,808 824,459
Inventories, net of reserve for obsolescence of $68,000 (2003) and

$60,000 (2002) 931,323 856,784
Prepaid expenses 46,929 62,535
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March 31,
Total current assets 2,523,612 2,244,766
EQUIPMENT, at cost:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 818,392 780,278
Customer-site equipment 306,381
Less-accumulated depreciation (858,144) (755,636)
Equipment, net 266,629 24,642
PATENTS, net of accumulated amortization of $55,871 (2003) and
$34,147 (2002) 129,916 131,065
OTHER ASSETS 12,972 12,972
Total assets $ 2,933,129 $ 2,413,445
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 416,848 $ 273,933
Accrued compensation 150,607 143,586
Other accrued liabilities 359,326 223,239
Total current liabilities 926,781 640,758
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, no par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, no
shares issued or outstanding
Common stock, no par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
5,430,026 (2003) and 5,414,532 (2002) shares issued and outstanding 17,267,684 17,248,365
Accumulated deficit (15,261,336) (15,475,678)
Total shareholders' equity 2,006,348 1,772,687
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 2,933,129 $ 2,413,445

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these balance sheets.

A-F-3

ENCISION INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For The Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001

Explanation of Responses:
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For The Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

REVENUE, NET $ 6,812,339 $ 4,863,908 $ 3,017,384
COST OF SALES 2,771,969 2,105,842 1,384,628
Gross profit 4,040,370 2,758,066 1,632,756
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Sales and marketing 2,488,120 1,752,238 1,492,860
General and administrative 841,453 790,607 764,029
Research and development 502,939 445,843 458,091
Total operating expenses 3,832,512 2,988,688 2,714,980
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 207,858 (230,622) (1,082,224)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest income 4,059 18,939 45,525
Other income (expense) 2,425 (3,894) 46,247
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 214342  $ (215,577) $ (990,452)

NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic net income (loss) per common share $ 0.04 $ 0.04) $ (0.18)

Diluted net income (loss) per common share $ 0.04 $ 0.04) $ (0.18)

Weighted average shares used in computing basic net income
(loss) per common share 5,424,038 5,405,856 5,389,174

Weighted average shares used in computing diluted net income
(loss) per common share 5,888,205 5,405,856 5,389,174

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ENCISION INC.
STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

Common Stock
Warrants  Accumulated Other

For Common  Comprehensive Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount Stock Loss Deficit Income (Loss) Total
5,383,507 $ 16,941,317 $ 290,400 $ (48,642) $ (14,269,649) $ 2913426

Explanation of Responses:
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Common Stock

options 4,225 4,225
Short-term 13.000
investment valuation 48,642 $ 48,642 48,642
Net loss (990,452) (990,452) (990,452)
BALANCES,
March 31, 2001 5,396,507 16,945,542 290,400 (15,260,101) $ (941,810) 1,975,841
I
Exercise of stock
options 18,025 12,423 12,423
Expiration of
warrants 290,400 (290,400)
Net loss (215,577) $ (215,577) (215,577)
BALANCES,
March 31, 2002 5,414,532 17,248,365 (15,475,678) $ (215,577) 1,772,687
I
Stock-based
compensation 12,000 12,000
Exercise of stock
options 15,494 7,319 7,319
Net income 214,342 $ 214,342 214,342
BALANCES,
March 31, 2003 5,430,026 $ 17,267,684 $ $ (15,261,336) $ 214,342 $ 2,006,348
L ;& ;& ]} I
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
A-F-5
ENCISION INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Fiscal Years Ended March 31,
2003 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) $ 214342 $ 215,577) $ (990,452)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities-
Depreciation and amortization 124,232 71,128 130,034
Amortization of discount, net (9,226)
Inventory reserves 8,000 5,000 (90,000)
Provision for (recovery of) bad debts 12,000 (5,000) 14,000
Stock-based compensation 12,000
Gain on sale of short-term investments (46,916)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities-
Accounts receivable (147,349) (109,862) (437,570)
Inventories (82,539) (94,792) (82,478)
Explanation of Responses: 22
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For The Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

Prepaid expenses and other assets 15,606 1) (39,834)
Accounts payable 142,915 46,527 47,439
Accrued compensation and other accrued liabilities 143,108 26,243 52,664
Other liabilities (10,100)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 442315 (276,354) (1,462,439)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Sale of short-term investments 1,832,264
Capital expenditures (344,495) (7,349) (27,402)
Patent costs (20,575) (19,147) (1,706)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (365,070) (26,496) 1,803,156

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 7,319 12,423 4,225

Net cash provided by financing activities 7,319 12,423 4,225

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 84,564 (290,427) 344,942
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 500,988 791,415 446,473
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 585,552 §$ 500,988 $ 791,415

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

A-F-6

ENCISION INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1) ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Encision Inc. (the "Company") is a medical device company that designs, develops, manufactures and markets patented surgical
instruments that provide greater safety to patients undergoing minimally invasive surgery. The Company believes its patented AEM® surgical
instrument technology is changing the marketplace for electrosurgical devices and instruments by providing a solution to a well-documented risk
in laparoscopic surgery. The Company's sales to date have been made principally in the United States.

The Company achieved profitable operations in fiscal 2003 but prior to that had incurred losses since its inception and has an accumulated
deficit of $15,261,336 at March 31, 2003. Operations have been financed primarily through issuance of common stock. The Company's liquidity
has substantially diminished because of such continuing operating losses and the Company may be required to seek additional capital in the
future.

During fiscal year 2003, the Company achieved annual net income and positive cash flow for the first time in its history. The Company's
strategic marketing and sales plan is designed to expand the use of the Company's products in surgically active hospitals in the United States.
Management expects these efforts to result in continued revenue increases for fiscal 2004 which, combined with planned controlled operating
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expenses and consistent gross profit margins, are expected to maintain profitable operations and conserve the Company's cash resources.

The Company believes that its cash and working capital resources will be sufficient to fund its operations through March 31, 2004. If the
Company is not successful during fiscal 2004 in sustaining profitability and positive cash flow, additional capital resources may be required.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions. Such estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as well as
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all cash and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents and short-term trade receivables and payables. The carrying
values of cash and cash equivalents and short-term receivables and payables approximate their fair value due to their short maturities.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company has no significant off-balance sheet concentrations of credit risk such as foreign exchange contracts, options contracts or
other foreign hedging arrangements. The Company maintains

A-F-7

the majority of its cash balances with two financial institutions in the form of demand deposits and money market funds.

Accounts receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from transactions with and from entities in the healthcare industry primarily
located in the United States. Accordingly, the Company may be exposed to credit risk generally associated with the healthcare industry. The
Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required
payments.

A summary of the Company's bad debt activity for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003 is as follows:

Balance, as of March 31, 2002 $ 16,000
Expense 12,000
Write-offs (3,000)

Balance, as of March 31, 2003 $ 25,000

.|

The net accounts receivable balance at March 31, 2003 of $959,808 included $227,178, or approximately 24%, from one distributor. The
net accounts receivable balance at March 31, 2002 of $824,459 included $196,123, or approximately 24%, from one distributor.

Warranty Accrual

The Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. While the Company engages in
extensive product quality programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality of its component suppliers, the
Company's warranty obligation is based upon historical experience and is also affected by product failure rates and material usage incurred in
correcting a product failure. Should actual product failure rates or material usage costs differ from the Company's estimates, revisions to the
estimated warranty liability would be required. A summary of the Company's warranty claims activity for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003
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is as follows:

Balance, as of March 31, 2002 $ 81,000
Expense 146,101
Claims (74,601)

Balance, as of March 31, 2003 $ 152,500

]

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market. The Company reduces inventory for estimated obsolete or
unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about
future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management,
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additional inventory write-downs may be required. At March 31, 2003 and 2002, inventory consisted of the following:

2003 2002
Raw materials $ 627,243 $ 633,358
Finished goods 372,080 283,426
999,323 916,784
Less Reserve for obsolescence (68,000) (60,000)

$ 931,323 $ 856,784

A summary of the Company's inventory reserve for obsolescence activity for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003 is as follows:

Balance, as of March 31, 2002 $ 60,000
Expense 8,000
Write-offs 0
Balance, as of March 31, 2003 $ 68,000
|
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, with depreciation computed primarily on a double-declining basis over the estimated useful life
of the asset, generally three to five years. Company-owned AEM Monitors at customer sites are depreciated on a double-declining basis for a
period of 5 years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset.
Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred and major additions, replacements and improvements are capitalized.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. A long-lived asset is considered impaired when estimated future cash flows related to the asset, undiscounted and
without interest, are insufficient to recover the carrying amount of the asset. If deemed impaired, the long-lived asset is reduced to its estimated
fair value. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or estimated fair value less cost to sell.

Patents
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The costs of applying for patents are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the patent's economic or legal life
(17 years in the United States). Capitalized costs are expensed if patents are not granted. The Company reviews the carrying value of its patents
periodically to determine whether the patents have continuing value and such reviews could result in the conclusion that the recorded amounts
have been impaired.

A-F-9

Accrued Liabilities

The Company has accrued $152,500 related to warranty claims and $96,377 related to sales commissions and has included these amounts in
accrued liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets as of March 31, 2003. At March 31, 2002, the Company accrued $81,000 related to
warranty claims and $51,724 related to sales commissions and included these amounts in accrued liabilities in the balance sheets as of March 31,
2002.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes" ("SFAS No. 109"). SFAS No. 109 requires recognition of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future income tax consequences, based on enacted tax laws, of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of
assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 109 also requires recognition of deferred tax assets for the expected future tax effects of all deductible temporary
differences, loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets are then reduced, if deemed necessary, by a valuation allowance
for the amount of any tax benefits which, more likely than not based on current circumstances, are not expected to be realized. During FY 03 the
Company utilized net operating loss carryforwards to entirely offset its tax liability. As a result, no tax provision is reflected in the
accompanying statements of operations. Should the Company achieve sufficient, sustained income in the future, the Company may conclude that
some or all of the valuation allowance should be reversed (Note 5).

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from product sales is recorded when the Company ships the product and title has passed to the customer, provided that the
Company has evidence of a customer arrangement and can conclude that collection is probable. The Company's shipping policy is FOB
Shipping Point. The Company recognizes revenue from sales to stocking distributors when there is no right of return, other than for normal
warranty claims. The Company has no ongoing obligations related to product sales, except for normal warranty.

Research and Development Expenses
The Company expenses research and development costs for products and processes as incurred.
Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" ("SFAS
No. 123"), and applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" ("APB No. 25"), and related
interpretations in accounting for stock options granted to employees. If the Company had accounted for its stock-based
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compensation plans in accordance with SFAS 123, the Company's net income or loss and pro forma net income or loss per basic and diluted
common share would have been reported as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net Income (Loss)
As Reported $ 214,342 $ (215,577) $ (990,452)
(133,420) (130,920) (106,712)
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

Stock-based compensation based upon estimated fair
values

Pro forma $ 80,922 $ (346,497) $ (1,097,164)
Pro Forma Net Income (Loss) Per Basic and Diluted
Common Share

As Reported $ 0.04 $ 0.04) $ (0.18)
Pro Forma $ 0.01 $ (0.06) $ (0.20)

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income" ("SFAS No. 130"). SFAS No. 130
establishes standards for reporting and display of comprehensive income or loss and its components in a full set of general-purpose financial
statements. Other comprehensive income is reported in the Statements of Shareholders' Equity and consists of adjustments to the fair value of
short-term investments.

Segment Reporting
The Company has concluded that it has one operating segment.
Basic and Diluted Income and Loss per Common Share

Net income or loss per share is calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per Share" ("SFAS No. 128"). Under the provisions
of SFAS No. 128, basic net income or loss per common share is computed by dividing net income or loss for the period by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income or loss per common share is computed by dividing the net income or
loss for the period by the weighted average number of common and potential common shares outstanding during the period if the effect of the
potential common shares is dilutive. As a result of the Company's net losses in fiscal years 2002 and 2001, all potentially dilutive securities in
the loss years would be anti-dilutive and were excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share, and there are no differences between
basic and diluted per share amounts for all prior years presented. Options to purchase 64,158, 859,150 and 826,200 shares of common stock
were excluded from dilutive stock options calculations for fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively, as their inclusion would be
antidilutive. In addition, during fiscal years 2002 and 2001, the Company had warrants to purchase 120,000 shares of the Company's common
stock outstanding, which were excluded from the dilutive stock options calculations for those respective years as their inclusion would be
antidilutive. These warrants expired in fiscal year 2002.
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The following is a table that reconciles the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per share:

For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2003

Income Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

Net income
Basic EPS Income available to common stockholders $ 214,342 5,424,038 $ 0.04

]
Effect of Dilutive Securities Stock Options 464,167
Diluted EPS Income available to common stockholders +
dilutive securities $ 214,342 5,888,205 $ 0.04

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
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In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets" (SFAS No. 144). SFAS No. 144 establishes a single accounting model for long- lived assets to be disposed of by sale and
requires that those long-lived assets be measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, whether reported in continuing
operations or in discontinued operations. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted
SFAS No. 144 on April 1, 2002, and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure" ("SFAS
No. 148"), which (i) amends SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," to provide alternative methods of transition for an
entity that voluntarily changes to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation (ii) amends the disclosure provisions
of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosure about the effects on reported net income of an entity's accounting policy decisions with respect
to stock-based employee compensation and (iii) amends APB Opinion No. 28, "Interim Financial Reporting," to require disclosure about those
effects in interim financial information. Items (ii) and (iii) of the new requirements in SFAS No. 148 are effective for financial statements for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. We have included the requirements of item (ii) in Note 2 in the Notes to Financial Statements and
will include the requirements of item (iii) beginning in our first quarter of 2004.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others" ("FIN 45"), which requires that, for guarantees within the scope of FIN 45 issued or
amended after December 31, 2002, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee be recognized. FIN 45 does
not apply to certain guarantee contracts, such as for a lessee's residual value guarantee embedded in a capital lease. FIN 45 also requires
additional disclosures in financial statements for periods ending after December 15, 2002, which we have adopted. However, as of March 31,
2003, we believe that, other than product warranty, we have no material items subject to the new disclosure requirements.
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(3) SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Stock Option Plan

The Company has adopted Stock Option Plans (the "Plans," as summarized below) to promote the interests of the Company and its
shareholders by helping the Company to attract, retain and motivate key employees and associates of the Company. Under the terms of the
Plans, the Board of Directors may grant either "nonqualified" or "incentive" stock options, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code and related
regulations. The purchase price of a nonqualified option may be less than the then fair market value of the stock. The purchase price of the
shares subject to an incentive stock option will be the fair market value of the Company's common stock on the date the option is granted.
Generally, vesting of stock options occurs such that 20% becomes exercisable one year after the date of grant and 20% becomes exercisable
each year thereafter. However, certain options vest after a specified period of time, and may be accelerated based on achieving specified events.
Generally, all stock options must be exercised within ten years from the date granted.

On February 14, 1991, the Board of Directors and the shareholders of the Company adopted a stock option plan (the "1991 Plan") providing
for grants of stock options, stock appreciation rights and/or supplemental bonuses to employees and directors of the Company who are also
employees. The 1991 Plan permitted the granting of incentive and non-qualified stock options. As of March 31, 2003, options to purchase an
aggregate of 275,762 shares of common stock (net of options canceled) had been granted pursuant to the 1991 Plan and 180,562 options had
been exercised, leaving 95,200 still subject to exercise. The 1991 Plan expired on February 14, 2001 and no further stock options could be
granted after that date.

On August 15, 1997, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of the 1997 Stock Option Plan (the "1997 Plan") providing
for grants of stock options and/or supplemental bonuses to employees and directors of the Company. The Plan permits the granting of incentive
stock options and nonqualified stock options.

On July 24, 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved an amendment by the Board of Directors of the Company to increase the
number of common shares reserved for issuance under the 1997 Plan by 100,000 shares, to a total of 900,000 shares of common stock subject to
adjustment for dividend, stock split or other relevant changes in the Company's capitalization. As of March 31, 2003, options to purchase an
aggregate of 797,475 shares of Common Stock (net of options canceled) had been granted pursuant to the 1997 Plan and 46,519 options had
been exercised.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
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SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," defines a fair value based method of accounting for employee stock options
or similar equity instruments. However, SFAS No. 123 allows the continued measurement of compensation cost for such plans using the
intrinsic value method prescribed by APB No. 25, provided that pro forma disclosures are presented of net income or loss and net income or loss
per common share, assuming the fair value based method of SFAS No. 123 had been applied. The Company has elected to account for its
stock-based compensation plans for employees under APB No. 25; accordingly, for purposes of the pro forma disclosures presented below,
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the Company has computed the fair values of all options granted during fiscal years 2003 and 2002, using the Black-Scholes option valuation
model and the following weighted average assumptions:

2003 2002 2001
Risk-free interest rate 2.82% 4.49% 6.43%
Expected lives 5.0 years 5.0 years 5.0 years
Expected volatility 195% 192% 178%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

To estimate expected lives of options for this valuation, it was assumed options would be exercised upon becoming fully vested. All options
are initially assumed to vest. Cumulative compensation cost recognized in pro forma net income or loss with respect to options that are forfeited
prior to vesting is adjusted as a reduction of pro forma compensation expense in the period of forfeiture. The volatility of the stock is based on
the historical volatility for the period that approximates the expected lives of the options being valued. Fair value computations are highly
sensitive to the volatility factor; the greater the volatility, the higher the computed fair value of options granted.

The total fair value of options granted was computed to be approximately $100,157, $219,923 and $579,283 for the years ended March 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. These amounts are amortized ratably over the vesting periods of the options. Pro forma stock-based
compensation, net of the effect of forfeitures, was $133,420, $130,920 and $106,712 for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Weighted average shares used to calculate pro forma net income or loss per share were determined as described in Note 2, except in
applying the treasury stock method to outstanding options, net proceeds assumed received upon exercise were increased by the amount of
compensation cost attributable to future service periods and not yet recognized as pro forma expense.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of assumptions, including the expected stock price
volatility. Because the Company's employee stock options have characteristics significantly different than those of traded options, and because
changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's opinion, the existing models do not
necessarily provide a reliable single
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measure of the fair value of its employee stock options. A summary of the Company's stock option activity, and related information for each of
the three fiscal years ended March 31, 2003 is as follows:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Fair
Outstanding Exercise Price Value
BALANCE, as of March 31, 2000 497,200 $ 1.14
I
EXERCISABLE, as of March 31, 2000 102,584 $ 3.95
I
Granted 510,000 $ 122 % 1.14
Exercised (13,000) $ 0.33
Forfeited (168,000) $ 0.40
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Weighted Weighted
Average Average Fair
Outstanding Exercise Price Value
BALANCE, as of March 31, 2001 826,200 $ 1.35
]
EXERCISABLE, as of March 31, 2001 173,571  $ 2.54
]
Granted 110,000 $ 207 $ 2.01
Exercised (18,025) $ 0.69
Forfeited (59,025) $ 0.95
BALANCE, as of March 31, 2002 859,150 $ 1.47
]
EXERCISABLE, as of March 31, 2002 581,067 $ 1.57
]
Granted 37,500 $ 275 $ 2.67
Exercised (15,494) $ 0.47
Forfeited (35,000) $ 2.54
BALANCE, as of March 31, 2003 846,156 $ 1.52
]
EXERCISABLE, as of March 31, 2003 640,567 $ 1.54
]

The following table summarizes information about employee stock options outstanding and exercisable at March 31, 2003:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number of Weighted

Options Average Weighted Number Weighted

Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average

At March 31, Contractual Exercise At March 31, Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices 2003 Life in Years Price 2003 Price
$0.31 $0.63 191,632 1.6 $ 0.42 130,139 $ 0.41
$0.85 $1.44 466,824 22 $ 1.26 397,898 $ 1.26
$2.00 $2.85 144,500 28 $ 2.47 69,330 $ 2.43
$6.00 $6.60 43,200 27 $ 6.03 43,200 $ 6.03
846,156 22 $ 1.52 640,567 $ 1.54
I I

Of the 846,156 options for the Company's common stock at March 31, 2003, 60,000 represent nonqualified stock options and 786,156
represent incentive stock options. The exercise price of all options granted through March 31, 2003, has been equal to or greater than the fair
market value, as
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determined by the Company's Board of Directors or based upon publicly quoted market values of the Company's common stock on the date of
the grant. At March 31, 2003, options for 102,525 shares of the Company's common stock are available for grant under the plans.

Outstanding Warrants
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In conjunction with the Company's Initial Public Offering (IPO) in June 1996, the Company agreed to sell to John G. Kinnard and
Company, Incorporated as the representative of the several Underwriters, for a nominal purchase price, a five-year warrant to purchase up to
120,000 shares of the Common Stock of the Company, exercisable at 120% of the IPO price of $10.50 per share. As of March 31, 2002, none of
the warrants were exercised and the warrants have expired. During fiscal year 2003, the Company granted options to non-employees to purchase
5,000 shares of common stock. The options had an estimated fair value, determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, of $12,000,
which was recorded as general and administrative expense.

(4) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company currently leases its facilities under noncancelable lease agreements through October 31, 2004. The following is a schedule of
minimum future lease payments by fiscal years as of March 31, 2003:

Operating
Leases

Year ended March 31,
2004 111,572

2005 66,955

$ 178,527

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $106,274, $105,312 and $98,402, respectively.

The Company is subject to regulation by the United States Food and Drug Administration ("FDA"). The FDA provides regulations
governing the manufacture and sale of the Company's products and regularly inspects the Company and other manufacturers to determine their
compliance with these regulations. Failure to comply with FDA regulations could have a material adverse impact on the Company's operations
and financial position. The Company was last inspected in November 1998, and has not, at May 2, 2003, been notified of any deficiencies from
that inspection. FDA inspections are conducted approximately every two years after approval is obtained or on a more frequent basis, at the
discretion of the FDA. The Company was granted a Certificate to Foreign Government in October 11, 2000 that states in part that, based on the
last periodic inspection, the Company was in substantial compliance with current good manufacturing processes and, thereby, allowing the
Company to ship products to foreign countries.

The Company's obligation with respect to employee severance benefits is minimized by the "at will" nature of the employee relationships.
The Company's total obligation with respect to contingent severance benefit obligations is less than $100,000.
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(5) INCOME TAXES

As of March 31, 2003, the Company had approximately $12.3 million of net operating loss carryovers for tax purposes. Additionally, the
Company has certain research and development tax credits available to offset future federal and state income taxes. The net operating loss and
credit carryovers begin to expire in 2007. The Internal Revenue Code contains provisions, which may limit the net operating loss carryforwards
available to be used in any given year if certain events occur, including significant changes in ownership interests. The components of the net
deferred income tax asset were as follows:

March 31,
2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss and credit carryovers $ 4,687,000 $ 5,867,000
Other 112,000 122,000
4,799,000 5,989,000
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March 31,

Valuation allowance (4,799,000) (5,989,000)

Net tax provision or (benefit) $ $

Management believes that based on all available evidence, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be fully realized.
Accordingly, a valuation allowance has been recorded against the deferred tax asset. During Fiscal 2003, it was determined that net operating
losses of approximately $3 million may no longer be available, and the deferred tax asset and the valuation allowance were adjusted by

$1,119,000. The provision for income taxes includes the following:

Year Ended March 31,
2003 2002 2001

Current:

Federal $ $ $

State

Total Current

Deferred:

Federal 64,000 (68,000) (335,000)

State 7,000 (7,000) (35,000)

Total deferred provision (benefit) 71,000 (75,000) (370,000)

Decrease (increase) in valuation allowance 71,000 75,000 370,000
Total provision (benefit) $ $ $
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The difference between the statutory federal income tax rate and the Company's effective income tax rate is summarized as follows:

Year Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001

Federal income tax rate 34.0% (34.00% (34.0)0%

Increase (decrease) results from
State income taxes net of federal benefits 3.5% 3.5)% 3.5)%
Other 2.9% 2.2% 0.6%

Valuation allowance 40.4)%  35.3% 36.9%

% % %

Effective income tax rate

(6) LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is not currently engaged in any legal proceedings. The Company may become involved in litigation in the future in the

normal course of business.

The Company has notified one of its distributors that it is in breach of its Distributor Agreement with the Company in several respects, and
that if the distributor does not cure the breaches the Agreement may be terminated. The distributor has informed the Company that it believes the
Company's interpretations of the Agreement are incorrect. If the parties are not able to resolve the dispute or negotiate a settlement to the
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dispute, the Distributor Agreement provides for binding arbitration in Boulder, Colorado. If the dispute is not resolved in a timely manner or is
resolved in a manner adverse to the Company, it will likely affect sales activity in the distributor's territory. While the Company believes the
existing on-going revenues from the installed base of customers will not be affected, potential new sales to new hospitals in that distributor's
territory could be hindered. The distributor's purchases represented approximately 10% of the Company's revenue in FY2003 and 14% of the
Company's revenue in FY 2002. The business entity is principally owned by an individual who is a shareholder of the Company.

(7) MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The Company depends on revenue that is generated from the hospitals' ongoing usage of the AEM surgical instruments. In fiscal 2003, the
Company generated revenue from over 300 hospitals that have converted to AEM products, but no hospital customer contributed more than 3%
to the total revenues. The Company utilizes a small number of stocking distributors, which sell AEM products to multiple hospital customers.
Two distributors generated revenue in excess of 10% for fiscal 2003; $721,687 (11%) and $701,689 (10%) respectively. For fiscal 2002, two
stocking distributors generated revenue of $670,072 (14%) and $564,225 (12%), respectively. For fiscal 2001, no stocking distributor or hospital
customer contributed over 10% to total net revenue. Approximately 50% of the new hospital conversions in fiscal 2003 were from hospitals
affiliated with group purchasing organizations, Novation and Premier, with whom the Company signed supplier agreements in 2002.
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(8) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company sells product to a stocking distributor principally owned by an individual who is also a significant shareholder of Encision.
The Company generated revenue of $701,689 (10%) from this distributor, which sold AEM products to multiple hospital customers in its
authorized region. The principal owner of this distributor holds 380,700 shares (7%) of the Company's common stock as of March 31, 2003.

(9) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has adopted a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan which covers all full-time employees who have completed three months of full-time
continuous service and are age eighteen or older. Participants may defer up to 20% of their gross pay up to a maximum limit determined by law.
Participants are immediately vested in their contributions. The Company may make discretionary contributions based on corporate financial
results for the fiscal year. To date, the Company has not made contributions to the 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan. Vesting in a contribution account
(the Company's contribution) is based on years of service, with a participant fully vested after five years of credited service.
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ENCISION INC.

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)
June 30, March 31,
2003 2003
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 472,888 $ 585,552
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $19,000 and
$25,000, respectively 739,375 959,808
Inventory, net of reserve for obsolescence of $68,000 and $68,000,
respectively 1,084,730 931,323
Prepaid expenses 134,413 46,929
Total current assets 2,431,406 2,523,612
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June 30, March 31,
2003 2003
EQUIPMENT, at cost:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 857,396 818,392
Customer-site equipment 356,592 306,381
Less accumulated depreciation (893,775) (858,144)
Equipment, net 320,213 266,629
PATENTS, net of accumulated amortization of $58,910 and $55,871,
respectively 126,877 129,916
OTHER ASSETS 12,972 12,972
Total assets $ 2,891,468 $ 2,933,129
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 483,373 $ 416,848
Accrued compensation 70,386 150,607
Other accrued liabilities 296,367 359,326
Total current liabilities 850,126 926,781
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, no par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, no shares
issued or outstanding
Common stock, no par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 5,430,026
shares outstanding 17,267,684 17,267,684
Accumulated deficit (15,226,342) (15,261,336)
Total shareholders' equity 2,041,342 2,006,348
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 2,891,468 $ 2,933,129

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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ENCISION INC.

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

For the Three Months
Ended June 30,

Explanation of Responses:
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For the Three Months
Ended June 30,
2003 2002
REVENUE, NET $ 1,701,940 $ 1,342,392
COST OF SALES 732,007 513,060
Gross profit 969,933 829,332

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Sales and marketing 518,403 561,040

General and administrative 226,294 232,301

Research and development 188,574 124,778

Total operating expenses 933,271 918,119

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 36,662 (88,787)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Interest income 477 1,056

Other income (expense), net (2,145) (2,920)
NET INCOME (LOSS) $ 34,994 § (90,651)
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE:

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share $ 001 $ (0.02)

Diluted net income (loss) per common share $ 0.01 $ (0.02)

Weighted average shares used in computing basic net income (loss) per

common share 5,430,026 5,420,510

Weighted average shares used in computing diluted net income (loss) per

common share 5,881,529 5,420,510

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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ENCISION INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

For the Three Months
Ended June 30,

2003 2002
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For the Three Months
Ended June 30,
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) $ 34,994 $ (90,651)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities-
Depreciation and amortization 38,670 19,721
Provision for bad debts (70) 2,500
Inventory reserves
Non-cash, stock-based, compensation charge 12,000
Changes in operating assets and liabilities-
Accounts receivable 220,503 135,895
Inventory (153,407) 58,986
Other assets (87,484) (45,709)
Accounts payable 66,525 4,548
Accrued compensation and other accrued liabilities (143,180) (34,403)
Net cash provided by (used) in operating activities (23,449) 62,887
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment in equipment (89,215) (73,813)
Patent costs (3,948)
Net cash used in investing activities (89,215) (77,761)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 3,950
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,950
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (112,664) (10,924)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period 585,552 500,988

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 472,888 $

490,064
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NOTES TO CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Explanation of Responses:

ENCISION INC.

JUNE 30, 2003

(Unaudited)
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Encision Inc. (the "Company") is a medical device company that designs, develops, manufactures and markets patented surgical
instruments that provide greater safety to patients undergoing minimally invasive surgery. The Company believes its patented AEM® surgical
instrument technology is changing the marketplace for electrosurgical devices and instruments by providing a solution to a well-documented risk
in laparoscopic surgery. The Company's sales to date have been made principally in the United States.

The Company achieved profitable operations in fiscal 2003 but prior to that had incurred losses since its inception and has an accumulated
deficit of $15,226,342 at March 31, 2003. Operations have been financed primarily through issuance of common stock. The Company's liquidity
has substantially diminished because of such continuing operating losses and the Company may be required to seek additional capital in the
future.

During fiscal year 2003, the Company achieved annual net income and positive cash flow for the first time in its history. The Company's
strategic marketing and sales plan is designed to expand the use of the Company's products in surgically active hospitals in the United States.

Management expects these efforts to result in continued revenue increases for fiscal 2004 which, combined with planned controlled operating
expenses and consistent gross profit margins, are expected to maintain profitable operations and conserve the Company's cash resources.

The Company believes that its cash and working capital resources will be sufficient to fund its operations through March 31, 2004. If the
Company is not successful during fiscal 2004 in sustaining profitability and positive cash flow, additional capital resources may be required.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions. Such estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as well as
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all cash and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents and short-term trade receivables and payables. The carrying
values of cash and cash equivalents and short-term receivables and payables approximate their fair value due to their short maturities.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company has no significant off-balance sheet concentrations of credit risk such as foreign exchange contracts, options contracts or
other foreign hedging arrangements. The Company maintains the majority of its cash balances with two financial institutions in the form of
demand deposits and money market funds.

Accounts receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from transactions with and from entities in the healthcare industry primarily
located in the United States. Accordingly, the Company may be exposed to credit risk generally associated with the healthcare industry. The
Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required
payments.

A summary of the Company's bad debt activity for the three months ended June 30, 2003 is as follows:

Balance, as of March 31, 2003 $ 25,000
Expense (70)
Write-offs (5,930)
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Balance, as of June 30, 2003 $ 19,000

The net accounts receivable balance at June 30, 2003 of $739,375 included $29,083, or approximately 4%, from one distributor. The net
accounts receivable balance at March 31, 2003 of $959,808 included $227,178, or approximately 24%, from one distributor.

Warranty Accrual

The Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. While the Company engages in
extensive product quality programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality of its component suppliers, the
Company's warranty obligation is based upon historical experience and is also affected by product failure rates and material usage incurred in
correcting a product failure. Should actual product failure rates or material usage costs differ from the Company's estimates, revisions to the
estimated warranty liability would be required. A summary of the Company's warranty claims activity for the three months ended June 30, 2003
is as follows:

Balance, as of March 31, 2003 $ 152,500
Expense 781
Claims (28,281)
Balance, as of June 30, 2003 $ 125,000
.|
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market. The Company reduces inventory for estimated obsolete or
unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about
future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory
write-downs may be required. Inventory consisted of the following:

June 30, March 31,
2003 2003
Raw materials $ 769,105 $ 627,243
Finished goods 383,625 372,080
1,152,730 999,323
Less Reserve for obsolescence (68,000) (68,000)

$ 1,084,730 $ 931,323

A summary of the Company's inventory reserve for obsolescence activity for the three months ended June 30, 2003 is as follows:

Balance, as of March 31, 2003 $ 68,000
Expense 0
Write-offs 0
Balance, as of June 30, 2003 $ 68,000
.}
Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, with depreciation computed primarily on a double-declining basis over the estimated useful life
of the asset, generally three to five years. Company-owned AEM Monitors at customer sites are depreciated on a double-declining basis for a
period of 5 years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred and major additions, replacements and improvements are capitalized.
Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. A long-lived asset is considered impaired when estimated future cash flows related to the asset, undiscounted and
without interest, are insufficient to recover the carrying amount of the asset. If deemed impaired, the long-lived asset is reduced to its estimated

fair value. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of their carrying amount or estimated fair value less cost to sell.
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Patents

The costs of applying for patents are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the patent's economic or legal life
(17 years in the United States). Capitalized costs are expensed if patents are not granted. The Company reviews the carrying value of its patents
periodically to determine whether the patents have continuing value and such reviews could result in the conclusion that the recorded amounts
have been impaired.

Accrued Liabilities

The Company has accrued $125,000 related to warranty claims and $84,614 related to sales commissions and has included these amounts in
accrued liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets as of June 30, 2003.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes" ("SFAS No. 109"). SFAS No. 109 requires recognition of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future income tax consequences, based on enacted tax laws, of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of
assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 109 also requires recognition of deferred tax assets for the expected future tax effects of all deductible temporary
differences, loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets are then reduced, if deemed necessary, by a valuation allowance
for the amount of any tax benefits which, more likely than not based on current circumstances, are not expected to be realized. During FY 03 the
Company utilized net operating loss carryforwards to entirely offset its tax liability. As a result, no tax provision is reflected in the
accompanying statements of operations. Should the Company achieve sufficient, sustained income in the future, the Company may conclude that
some or all of the valuation allowance should be reversed (Note 5).

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from product sales is recorded when the Company ships the product and title has passed to the customer, provided that the
Company has evidence of a customer arrangement and can conclude that collection is probable. The Company's shipping policy is FOB
Shipping Point. The Company recognizes revenue from sales to stocking distributors when there is no right of return, other than for normal
warranty claims. The Company has no ongoing obligations related to product sales, except for normal warranty.

Research and Development Expenses
The Company expenses research and development costs for products and processes as incurred.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" ("SFAS
No. 123"), and applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" ("APB No. 25"), and related
interpretations in accounting for stock options granted to employees. If the Company had accounted for its stock-based compensation plans in
accordance with SFAS 123, the Company's net income or loss and pro forma net income or loss per basic and diluted common share for the
three months ended June 30, 2003 would have been reported as follows:
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Net Income (Loss)

As Reported $ 34,994
Stock-based compensation based upon estimated fair values (35,605)
Pro forma $ 611)

Pro Forma Net Income (Loss) Per Basic and Diluted Common Share

As Reported $ 0.01
Pro Forma $ 0.00
Segment Reporting

The Company has concluded that it has one operating segment.
Basic and Diluted Income and Loss per Common Share

Net income or loss per share is calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per Share" ("SFAS No. 128"). Under the provisions
of SFAS No. 128, basic net income or loss per common share is computed by dividing net income or loss for the period by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income or loss per common share is computed by dividing the net income or
loss for the period by the weighted average number of common and potential common shares outstanding during the period if the effect of the
potential common shares is dilutive. As a result of the Company's net loss for the three months ended June 30, 2002, all potentially dilutive
securities in the loss years would be anti-dilutive and were excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share, and there are no differences
between basic and diluted per share amounts for all prior years presented.
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The following is a table that reconciles the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per share:

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2003

Income Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
Net income
Basic EPS Income available to common stockholders $ 34,994 5,430,026 $ 0.01
]
Effect of Dilutive Securities Stock Options 451,503
Diluted EPS Income available to common stockholders + dilutive
securities $ 34,994 5,881,529 $ 0.01
]

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets" (SFAS No. 144). SFAS No. 144 establishes a single accounting model for long- lived assets to be disposed of by sale and
requires that those long-lived assets be measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, whether reported in continuing
operations or in discontinued operations. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted
SFAS No. 144 on April 1, 2002, and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure" ("SFAS
No. 148"), which (i) amends SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," to provide alternative methods of transition for an
entity that voluntarily changes to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation (ii) amends the disclosure provisions
of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosure about the effects on reported net income of an entity's accounting policy decisions with respect
to stock-based employee compensation and (iii) amends APB Opinion No. 28, "Interim Financial Reporting," to require disclosure about those
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effects in interim financial information. Items (ii) and (iii) of the new requirements in SFAS No. 148 are effective for financial statements for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. We have included the requirements of item (ii) in Note 2 in the Notes to Financial Statements and
will include the requirements of item (iii) beginning in our first quarter of 2004.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others" ("FIN 45"), which requires that, for guarantees within the scope of FIN 45 issued or
amended after December 31, 2002, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee be recognized. FIN 45 does
not apply to certain guarantee contracts, such as for a lessee's residual value guarantee embedded in a capital lease. FIN 45 also requires
additional disclosures in financial statements for periods ending after December 15, 2002, which we have adopted. However, as of
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June 30, 2003, we believe that, other than product warranty, we have no material items subject to the new disclosure requirements.

In December 2002, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-21, "Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables"
("EITF 00-21"). EITF 00-21 addresses how to allocate revenue in arrangements that include more than one product or service and governs how
to identify whether goods or services or both that are to be delivered separately in a bundled sales arrangement should be accounted for
separately. EITF 00-21 is applied prospectively to arrangements entered into in periods beginning after June 15, 2003. Management is currently
evaluating EITF 00-21 and is in the process of determining the impact EITF 00-21 will have on the Company's financial position and results of
operations, if any.

(3) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company currently leases its facilities under noncancelable lease agreements through October 31, 2004. The minimum future lease
payments are $83,679 for fiscal year ended March 31, 2004 and $66,955 for fiscal year ended March 31, 2005.

The Company is subject to regulation by the United States Food and Drug Administration ("FDA"). The FDA provides regulations
governing the manufacture and sale of the Company's products and regularly inspects the Company and other manufacturers to determine their
compliance with these regulations. As of June 30, 2003 the Company believes it was in substantial compliance with all known regulations. The
Company was last inspected in November 1998 and has not, at June 30, 2003, been notified of any deficiencies from that inspection. FDA
inspections are conducted approximately every two years or on a more frequent basis at the discretion of the FDA.

The results of operations for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 should not be taken as an indication of the results of operations for all or any
part of the balance of the year.

The accounts receivable balance at June 30, 2003 of $739,375 included $35,802 (5%) from international customers.
(4) MANAGEMENT'S REPRESENTATIONS

The condensed interim financial statements included herein have been prepared by the Company, without audit, pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations,
although the Company believes that the disclosures made are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. The condensed interim
financial statements and notes thereto should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto, included in the
Company's Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, filed on Form 10-KSB on
June 12, 2003.

The accompanying condensed interim financial statements have been prepared, in all material respects, in conformity with the standards of
accounting measurements set forth in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 28 and reflect, in the opinion of management, all adjustments
necessary to summarize fairly the financial position and results of operations for such periods in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. All adjustments are of a normal recurring nature. The results of operations for the most recent interim
period are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.
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We have not authorized any dealer, salesperson or other person to give any information or represent anything not contained in this
prospectus. You must not rely on any unauthorized information. This prospectus does not offer to sell or buy any units in any
jurisdiction where it is unlawful. The information in this prospectus is current only as of its date.

Encision, Inc.

333,334 Shares of Common Stock
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